
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR COUNCIL MEETING HELD MARCH 20, 2012: 
A. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s): 

1. Regular Meeting of March 6, 2012. 
B. Report of Results of Regular Municipal Election held March 6, 2012 for the Record. 
C. Reorganization of Council after Regular Municipal Election per State Election Code §3-8-33H & 

Reappointment of Council Committees. 
D. Ratification of Finance Department’s Actions Regarding Bills for February 2012. 
E. Addition of New Equipment at Rotary Park Water Tower by Plateau Cellular. 
F. Item(s) from Public Works Committee: 

1. Presentation of Waste Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering Report. 
2. Industrial Discharge Permit for Roosevelt Brewing, LLC. 

G. Discussion/Action on Proposed Sister City (project) with Zambia. 
H. Other Business/Citizens to be Heard. 
I. Executive Session/Closed Executive Meeting: 

1. Action to Convene in a Closed Session/Meeting to Discuss Matters as Provided for under New 
Mexico Statutes Pertaining to Open Meetings Referencing Section 10-15-1 H.(2), 2008, for 
Limited Personnel Matters. 

2. Action to Convene in Open Session. 
3. Action Required as a Result of the Closed Session. 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTALES met in regular session Tuesday, March 20, 2012, at 
7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the Portales City Hall in full conformity with the rules and 
regulations.  Mayor King called the meeting to order and asked City Clerk Martinez-Terry to call roll. 
Those present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
MAYOR:  Sharon L. King 
 
MAYOR PRO-TEM: Dianne Y. Parker (absent) 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Matthew Tod Hunton       Antonio Salguero 
   Ronald L. Jackson       Oscar Robinson 
   Leo Lovett    Keith A. Thomas 
   Michael Lenard Lucero     
 
STAFF PRESENT: Tom Howell, City Manager  Jeff Gill, Police Chief 
   Joan Martinez-Terry, City Clerk  Marilyn Rapp, Finance Dir. 
   Randy Knudson, City Attorney  Johnny DeSha, Public Wks. Dir. 
   Susan Baysinger, Cap. Proj. Admin. Gary Nuckols, Fire Chief 

Troy Banther, I.T. Tech.    
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Christina Calloway, Press  Jim Landfair 
 
Mayor King asked Councilor Lovett to give the invocation, and Capital Projects Administrator Susan 
Baysinger to lead the Pledge of Allegiance and the Salute to the New Mexico flag. 
 
 
(A)  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S): 
 

1. Regular Meeting of March 6, 2012. 
 

Mayor King asked for Council to consider and approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 6, 
2012 as written and presented.  Councilor Jackson made the motion to approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of March 6, 2012 as presented.   Councilor Salguero seconded the 
motion.  All Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  Motion carried.  No 
abstentions.   
 



Minutes of March 20, 2012…………………………………………………………..  2 
 

(B)  REPORT OF RESULTS OF REGULAR MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD MARCH 6, 2012 
FOR THE RECORD 
 
Mayor King asked City Clerk Martinez-Terry to present this item.  Martinez-Terry told the Mayor and 
Council that the purpose of this report is for documentation of the results of the Regular Election held 
March 6, 2012 for recording in the minutes.  The City Clerk gave the results of the election as follows: 
 
FOR COUNCILORS FOR FOUR-YEAR TERMS--TOTAL VOTES RECEIVED: 
  

COUNCILOR WARD A:   MICHAEL LENARD LUCERO    80 
 COUNCILOR WARD B:   MATTHEW TOD HUNTON  144 
 COUNCILOR WARD C:   LEO LOVETT    100 
 COUNCILOR WARD D:   KEITH A. THOMAS   123 
  
Martinez-Terry told the Council that attached to the packet was the Certificate of Canvass and the 
Certificates of Election for each Councilor.  She added that this item requires no action—it is simply 
information and documentation of the election for the record. 
 
 
(C)  REORGANIZATION OF COUNCIL AFTER REGULAR MUNICIPAL ELECTION PER 
STATE ELECTION CODE §3-8-33H & REAPPOINTMENT OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES   
 
Mayor King asked that the Council ratify the appointment of Councilor Ronald L. Jackson as the Mayor 
Pro-Tem for the next year and reminded them that she made the statement when she was elected that 
she planned to recommend election of a new Pro-Tem every year of her term.  She also asked that the 
Council table the appointment of Council Committees for another meeting because there were some 
discrepancies on the list she had received.  She asked for Council action.  Councilor Lovett made the 
motion to ratify the appointment of Councilor Jackson as Mayor Pro-Tem.  Councilor 
Robinson seconded the motion.  All Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  
No abstentions.  Motion carried. 
 
She also asked that the Council table the appointment of Council Committees for another meeting 
because there were some discrepancies on the list she had received from staff.  Mayor King asked for 
Council action to table.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson made the motion to table the appointment of 
Council Committees to another meeting.  Councilor Robinson seconded the motion.  All 
Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried. 
 
 
(D)  RATIFICATION OF FINANCE DEPARTMENT’S ACTIONS REGARDING BILLS FOR 
FEBRUARY 2012 
 
Mayor King asked Marilyn Rapp, Finance Director, to report on the bills for February 2012.  Ms. Rapp told 
the Council that the Finance/Administration Committee had met recently and that they had reviewed the 
bills for February and recommended approval to the Council.   She asked for questions or concerns from 
the Council and for ratification of the bills.     

February 2012 
Pooled Cash Fund 999 $1,120,414.62  

 

Mayor King asked for action from the Council.  Councilor Lovett made the motion to ratify the 
payment of the bills for February 2012 as presented.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson seconded the 



Minutes of March 20, 2012…………………………………………………………..  3 
 

motion.  All Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion 
carried. 
 
 
(E)  ADDITION OF NEW EQUIPMENT AT ROTARY PARK WATER TOWER BY PLATEAU 
CELLULAR 
 
Mayor King asked City Manager Howell to introduce the request to add new equipment to the water 
tower.  Mr. Howell told the Council that in 2006 the Council had entered into an agreement with Plateau 
Telecommunication for use of the Rotary Park Water Tower for antennas and other cellular equipment. 
He told the Council that part of the agreement requires that modifications by Plateau to the tower site 
must come back to them for approval.  Howell told the Council that the purpose of the modifications 
requested is for upgrading cell service in the area.  He stated that the additional equipment included a 
new receiver, new transmitter and 3 antennas.  He added that one thing that could happen is that 3 of 
the existing antennas may come off the tower.  Howell told the Council that the lease for space on the 
tower is for $550.00 per month.  He stated that Plateau will order the equipment when they get approval 
of the modification from the Council.  Mayor King asked for action from the Council.  Councilor Lovett 
made the motion to approve P lateau Telecommunications’ request for additional equipment 
as modification to the agreement for use at the Rotary Park Water Tow er.  Mayor Pro-Tem 
Jackson seconded the motion.  All Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  No 
abstentions.  Motion carried.  
 
  
(F)  ITEM(S) FROM PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE: 
 

1. Presentation of Waste Water Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering 
Report. 

 
Mayor King asked Public Works Director John Desha to report on the preliminary engineering report 
(PER) on the Waste Water Treatment Plant.  DeSha told the Council that Smith Engineering Company 
had studied the existing plant and had developed 4 proposals that would handle the effluent stream.  He 
commented that the first proposal is to do nothing; and that 3 of the proposals would produce effluent to 
apply on top of the ground.  He directed the Council to review the pages of the report that list the 3 
different proposals.  He stated again that any of the 3 proposals would deliver what the City wants.  The 
phased oxidation option would need a lot of infrastructure.  He pointed out that the 3rd design is the 
cheapest because it uses shared walls.  DeSha told the Council that page 63 shows the estimated 
engineering costs.  He directed the Council to look at page 11, which is an aerial shot of the plant.  He 
told the Council that the plan is to rehab the ponds to handle the waste.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson asked 
about the plan for the depth of the ponds.  DeSha answered that the ponds will be as deep as the state 
will allow.  He described the flow of the plant and told the Council that when the capacity is increased, 
solids will have to be handled differently.   He commented that solids can be landfilled or can be used as 
fertilizer.  He stated that the cost is driven by the amount of concrete that will have to be poured.  He 
told the Council that the plan includes a new lab, new piping, and head works will have to be replaced.  
He stated that a lift station process is being looked at adding that it would be easier to operate than the 
current auger type.  He commented that parts are getting difficult to find.   Councilor Lucero asked about 
the depth of the digesters and asked if the employees would have to go into them.  DeSha responded 
that the depth would be 20 feet and that the employees won’t have to into them.  He commented that 
option 3 is much safer for operation.  DeSha told the Council that the estimated $13,000,000.00 cost 
does not include the engineering.  He told the Council that there is a lot of good information in the PER.  
He pointed out that page 62 shows the options of the head works of the plant.  He stated that it will 
require grit removal—added that vortex removal will handle grit, rocks, sand, etc.  He told the Council 
that the plant has a bar screen, but that a decision will need to be made on the type of head works to be 



Minutes of March 20, 2012…………………………………………………………..  4 
 

used.  He commented that page 64 will give the Council an idea of operating costs.  DeSha told the 
Council that operating costs will increase, that operators may have to be on 24 hours a day.  This report 
is very preliminary to allow the Council to review its options.  City Manager Howell told the Council that a 
workshop will be set up to answer questions on the options to get a final PER and to decide how it will be 
financed and built.  He told the Council that part of the funds is already budgeted--$8.18 million dollars.    
He commented that it would take a 20% increase in sewer rates to repay the debt for the work to 
improve the plant based on a 4% debt repayment without water reuse.  Mayor King asked about the 
operating costs for the existing sewer plant, but that could wait until the workshop.  DeSha stated that 
option 3 is the best and one that staff would recommend.  Mayor King asked why this option is the best.  
DeSha responded that, in his experience, he considered it bullet-proof because this type of plant could be 
insulted and continue to run.  He stated that option 3 is more efficient because it shares walls and allows 
more control over waste treatment.  He commented that the PER had been taken to the Public Works 
Committee, and that option 3 was recommended to them.  He told the Council that all three options 
consider growth for the next 20 years.  City Manager Howell told the Council that option 3 could 
potentially be doubled promptly for use.  Councilor Thomas asked if federal funding sources had been 
explored.  City Manager Howell responded that the PER is the first step, then funding sources will be 
explored once a final amount is determined.  Councilor Thomas asked if the existing plant is outdated.  
DeSha responded that the plant is about 30 years old.  Councilor Thomas asked if the plant is in violation 
of the Environment Department standards.  DeSha answered that the existing plant creates Class 3 
water, which can only be used for irrigation of non-food products.  Option 3 will allow the plant to create 
Class 1-a water that can be used in the City, which will help with conservation of water.  Mayor Pro-Tem 
Jackson asked if all 3 options are in the PER.  DeSha responded that this is correct.  Councilor Robinson 
commented that the City should be working to get Class 1-a water.  DeSha stated that, until we get this 
quality of water, it cannot be brought back into the city.  He told the Council that, for water reuse, the 
water will have to have chlorination and some kind of tertiary treatment, and the rest of it will be pumps 
and piping.  Councilor Lucero commented that option 3 appears to give the City the option to grow in the 
direction of water reuse.  City Manager Howell stated that option 3 would give us better numbers so that 
the water can be used for watering parks and other facilities.  Mayor King asked if it could be used for 
swimming.  DeSha responded that it could be used that way, but that the state won’t let us.  He added 
that it would be cleaner than the water in lakes or rivers.  Councilor Robinson commented that this reuse 
water could be dumped into rivers.  Mayor King asked how long it would take to build any of the options.  
Mr. Howell and Mr. DeSha answered that it would take about 20 months.  Councilor Lucero asked if the 
reuse water would have an odor.  DeSha responded that it would not be murky or have a smell of 
sewage.  Councilor Lovett asked about will be done with the effluent—will Clovis Landfill accept it and 
what is the additional cost of sending it to Clovis.  DeSha answered that the answer to that question is 
unknown until a decision is made as to the type of plant will be built.  City Manager Howell stated that 
Clovis does not landfill their effluent, they sell it.  He commented that it can be made into compost and 
that it is not hazardous at that point.  He added that the City could use it on the parks, give it away or 
potentially sell it.  Councilor Thomas asked if we could market it.  Mayor King suggested entering into an 
agreement with the City of Clovis.  DeSha commented on the quality of the effluent—that it would be 
very light in weight so could be transported in large quantities efficiently.  Mayor King asked that the 
Council review the PER for a month before holding the workshop.   
 
 

2. Industrial Discharge Permit for Roosevelt Brewing LLC. 
 
Mayor King asked John DeSha to review the industrial discharge permit for the Council.  Public Works 
Director DeSha told the Council that the City had received a discharge permit application from Roosevelt 
Brewing LLC.  He asked that the Council review the application in their packet.  He explained that the 
discharge from the brewery will not be very strong and will not be a problem for the sewage plant.  He 
commented that this was also heard by the Public Works Committee and that it is recommended for 
approval.  DeSha told the Council that Mr. Justin Cole needs to have this permit in place before he can 
get his financial package approved.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson asked if there will be any smell going into 



Minutes of March 20, 2012…………………………………………………………..  5 
 

the system.  DeSha responded that it will a small amount going into the system and that it will be diluted.  
Councilor Robinson asked if this would be liquid discharge only, no solids.  DeSha responded that this is 
true and that it should not be a problem because production is estimated at only 32 gallon barrels a day 
and not a significant amount of waste.  Councilor Robinson asked if the normal trash cycle will be 
sufficient to take care of any solids that could attract flies.  DeSha responded that it is a commercial 
business so it will be picked up 3 times a week.  Mayor King asked for the wishes of the Council.   
Councilor Robinson made a motion to approve the Industrial Discharge Permit for Roosevelt 
Brew ing LLC.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson seconded the motion.  All Council members present 
voted in favor of the motion.  No abstentions.  Motion carried.  
  
 
(G)  DISCUSSION/ACTION ON PROPOSED SISTER CITY WITH ZAMBIA 
 
Mayor King told the Council that it is time to come to agreement on the issue of sending someone to 
Zambia.  She asked the Council what they wished to do regarding the Zambia Sister City concept.  
Councilor Lovett asked if the City had heard from the representatives of Zambia.  Mayor King responded 
that the representatives of Zambia had been in contact.  She stated that her concern is that she is unsure 
of the benefit to Portales; and that the cost may not give us a sufficient return.  Councilor Thomas 
agreed with the Mayor.  Mayor King commented that the only economic development benefit she was 
aware of was peanuts, and that Sunland Peanuts was moving on that with Zambia.  Mayor Pro-Tem 
Jackson commented that he does not see that tourism between the two cities would be reciprocated.  
Councilor Lovett stated that the only two things he was interested in was education and peanuts, and 
that it seems both things are being addressed by others in the community and that he was not in favor of 
the expense to travel to Zambia.  Mayor King stated that she was concerned about protocol on the issue 
and that she would wait for a response from the Zambian representatives.  The Council did not express 
any disagreement with the Mayor’s position. 
 
 
(H)  OTHER BUSINESS/CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 
 
Mayor King asked for items of other business. 
 
Mayor King commented that she had noticed expenditures for Well #2 in the monthly bills.  She asked 
about the expenditure.  Public Works Director DeSha said that this expense was the cost for improving 
production of the wells. He added that production from the wells has dramatically improved.  He stated 
that wells are being cleaned and tested—7 in the Los Lomas section.  He stated that more will be cleaned 
and tested in phase 2 and 3.  He told the Council that this is a good investment and will extend the life of 
the wells.  DeSha told the Council that it takes about a week to rehab each well.  He commented that 
engineering will be needed to get a cost of piping and to do an environmental study on the wells.  City 
Manager Howell commented that the City system already has a million gallons more than last year.  
DeSha commented that demand will be dropping off in the near future due to Abengoa going offline and 
the university coming off as well.  DeSha also stated that the Water Department has been installing 
meters on the wells so we can see problems as they occur.  In addition, to meters on the wells, the plan 
is to put in flow meters at the tanks.  Councilor Lucero commented that this year should be a lot better 
than last year.  DeSha commented that the department will be able to detect leaks in the well field 
between both methods adding that the well field will be checked every day.  City Manager Howell stated 
that it will be documented through a daily log every day.  Councilor Robinson asked if there was a way to 
check leaks in town.  DeSha stated that leaks can be checked, but that it can be expensive to survey all 
the main lines, but to go to each and every tap becomes a problem.  Councilor Robinson stated that the 
property behind his residence has a leak that has surfaced.  He commented that the employee that reads 
the meters should be informing the owner.  DeSha stated that the department investigates leaks as they 
are found.  Councilor Thomas asked if there was a way to enforce repairs of leaks.  Mayor King stated 
that all departments should be trained to report leaks.  DeSha commented that this would take a bit of 



Minutes of March 20, 2012…………………………………………………………..  6 
 

retraining.  Mayor King commented that she understood that the rehab of wells would bring in about the 
same amount of water that the Los Lomas wells will produce.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson asked for a 
monthly report on the wells.  Mr. DeSha responded affirmatively and added that the tanks are not 
showing any major drops.   
 
Mayor King commented that many people in the community have asked about ENMU’s plans for the 
location where DeBaca Hall was removed.  She stated that she had called Scott Smart at ENMU and that 
his response was that ENMU’s plan is to put in a mixture of xeriscaping and a little grass.  He added that 
the university plans to have from 10 to 20% of the campus xeriscaped. 
 
Councilor Lovett asked about defensive driving for the City.  City Manager Howell responded that the 
insurance company requires defensive driving for city employees every 2 years.  Lovett asked about the 
trash truck that broke down on the side of the highway today—was it left overnight.  John DeSha 
commented that it ran out of diesel and had to be brought in this morning.  City Manager Howell stated 
that employee orientation is done on operation of all new equipment and that it is documented, but will 
have to be repeated. 
 
Councilor Robinson commended the City for the work being done on the parks and cemetery.  He asked 
if leaks are monitored by the Water Department—citing the property behind his residence.  He stated 
that there has been a leak from the apartments down the road beside his home for about a year.  City 
Manager Howell commented that the department does monitor leaks and that some leaks are on the 
property owner side of the meter.  He added that absentee landlords do create problems.  Councilor 
Lucero stated that he has seen improvement in correcting these issues by the Water Department. 
 
City Manager reported on the NMML District IV meeting held in Clovis on Monday, March 19, 2012.  He 
stated that the NMML had reported on the 77 bills presented and those passed by the state legislature.  
He commented that this was a very light session.  Howell told the Council that the District will receive 
$130,000 in discounts from the insurance company and that $97,000 of that will come back to the City of 
Portales.  He stated that the reason for this is that the City has a good insurance modifier for worker’s 
compensation and that claims are controlled.  He mentioned that the Mortgage Finance Authority was at 
the meeting to talk about the interest rates on loans which is down to 3.003%.  He added that the State 
Treasurer’s representative bragged on the interest they could get on investments.  Howell commented 
that the big bill that will affect the City is the bill removing tax on construction and services.  He 
commented that the bill exempts engineering and architectural services from GRT.  Mr. Howell told the 
Council that the NMML had told the communities present that they did not have a good feel for how it will 
affect cities in New Mexico.  He added that the Hold Harmless clause was defeated and that the bill 
passed will reduce GRT over the next 4 to 5 years.  Howell stated that the City of Portales did receive 
capital outlay in the amount of $110,000 for wells. 
 
Chief Gill reported that a person was killed at the accident at Abengoa.  He reported that the person was 
crushed by a beam and that the name of this person had not been released.  He stated that it will be 
investigated by OSHA. 
 
Sandy Chancey introduced herself as the Executive Director of the Eastern Plains Council of Governments 
(EPCOG) physically located at 418 Main Street in Clovis.  She offered the EPCOG’s assistance to the City 
for economic development needs and commented that they would be happy to help with locating funding 
sources.  Ms. Chancey told the Council that she keeps in touch with Mr. Mapalo and will break the news 
to him about the Council not being able to travel to Zambia.  She reminded the Council that Mr. Mapalo is 
a citizen of Zambia and that a delegation had come to the area to look into economic development 
opportunities with New Mexico.  Mayor King commented that the Council would be willing to support a 
pen pal project with Zambia.  Ms. Chancey stated that she did not know what the City of Clovis will do.  
Mayor King commented that ENMU has been involved with Zambia and that Casey O’Connor of ENMU has 
visited Zambia for the university.  



Minutes of March 20, 2012…………………………………………………………..  7 
 

There were no further items of other business.   
 
 

(I)  EXECUTIVE SESSION/CLOSED EXECUTIVE MEETING: 
 
The scheduled closed executive session was tabled due to lack of action. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business or comments, Mayor King adjourned the meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
        
Joan Martinez-Terry, City Clerk 


